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On My Own

One morning | left home early. | did not say goodbye to my
parents.

My father wanted me to work in an office. But | loved horses
and | wanted to ride horses. | wanted to be a jockey, but my
father didn't understand. So | left home. | was on my own.

| took a bus from the centre of town and then | walked.



Soon | reached the motorway. | wanted to get to London, but |
didn't have a car. Every time a car came, - put out my hand.
But the cars didn't stop. Half an hour passed. And then my luck
changed.

A big red Jaguar came up behind me. | saw the driver look at
me. Then the car slowed down and stopped.

For a moment | was worried. Perhaps the driver was lost and
wanted to ask me the way. But then he opened the door.

'Get in,' said the driver cheerfully. 'l can give you a lift.
We're both going the same way”'

I got in and sat in the seat beside the driver. There was a girl
sitting in the back. She had blonde hair and she didn't seem to
be very tall. | thought that the girl looked older than me.

The driver started the car again and drove off quickly.

| felt pleased for a moment. | had never been in a Jaguar
before. It was a big, fast and comfortable car.

Then the driver turned and looked at me.
Where are you going?' he asked.

'‘London,' | replied.
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‘Do you live there, or are you going to work there?' he asked.
"Well, yes,' | said.
"What do you mean, "yes"?' he asked me.
I don't live in London. I'm going to work in Lon-don.'
'What is your job?' he asked.

He was asking a lot of questions and | didn't want to answer
them. | was afraid of his questions because | didn't want to talk
about myself. So | didn't answer him. | said nothing.
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'I'm sorry,' he said with a smile. 'Am | asking you too many

questions?'
I was surprised. How did he know what | was thinking?

I wasn't able to think of a good answer, and | said simply, No,
no, that's all right. | don't mind telling you things.'

'Well, good,' the driver said. 'It's much better to talk when
you're travelling together. It's better than sitting in silence for
hours. | like young people.'

| didn't say anything. | remembered the girl in the back.
Why didn't she speak? Was she his daughter? | didn't know.

Perhaps she was his wife. But why was she sitting in the back?
A wife doesn't sit in the back when her husband is driving.

I still had my bag in my arms.

Why don't you put your bag in the back? asked the driver.
'You'll be more comfortable then.'

| turned round and put the bag in the back. | looked at the girl.
She was very pretty. She smiled. | saw that she wasn't very tall.

'Her name's Shirley,' said the driver. 'And I'm
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Masters. What's your name?'
‘Tom,' | said, 'Tom Doggett.'

'Hello, Tom,' said the girl, Shirley. She spoke in a very friendly
way. | was sure that she liked me.

‘Where's your home?" Masters asked me.
'Oh, near Liverpool,' | replied. This wasn't exactly true.

I didn't live near Liverpool. | lived in Liverpool. But | didn't want
him to learn anything about me.

'Oh, yes,' he said. 'l know Liverpool very well. | have a lot of
friends there. Do you live with your parents?'

I was waiting for this question. And | had thought of an

answer.
'l haven't got any parents,' | said quickly.

'Oh, I'm sorry,' said Masters. 'Have your parents been dead
long?

'Two years. They were killed in a car crash,' | replied. 'My father
was driving. The other car came straight at him. He was killed

immediately?

'That's terrible,' Masters said. There are far too many accidents
these days.'

Masters believed my story. It wasn't true, of course. My parents
were still alive, but | wanted to forget them. | had left home. |

was on my own now.
‘Do you live on your own, or with relatives?' Masters asked.
'On my own,' | said. 'l have my own flat.'

'That's good,' Masters said. Not many boys like you have their
own flat. How old are you, Tom?'
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'Seventeen,' | said, 'nearly eighteen.

I was pleased because Masters believed everything | told him. |
told him the truth and he believed me. | told him a lie and he
still believed me.
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The car drove on, and he didn't ask me any more ques-tions. |
hoped that Masters was going to London. But | still didn't
know. He hadn't told me.

Suddenly he slowed down. The car turned off the motor-way.
And we were still a long way from London.

2

A Job With Masters

'Here's a café,' Masters said. 'l feel hungry. Shall we have
something to eat and drink?

'Fine,' Shirley said.
| didn't want to stop. | wanted to get to London quickly.

But | didn't say anything. Masters was already getting out of
the car. So | got out too.

Shirley got out and smiled at me. | saw that she wasn't very
tall. In fact, we were the same height. | was sure that she liked

me.

We all went into the café. Shirley went and sat at a table by
the window. | sat opposite her because | wanted to look at her.

Then Masters came. He was carrying three cups of tea and
some sandwiches on a tray. He sat down next to me. | was
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surprised. Why didn't he sit next to Shirley? So he isn't very
friendly with her, | thought.

We ate our sandwiches quietly for a few minutes. Then Masters
spoke to me.

'Have you a good job in London, Tom?'
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I didn't know what to say. | didn't have a job in London.
'Oh, yes, I'm sure that it will be,' | said.
'What exactly will your job be?' he asked.

I didn't want to say any more; but it was difficult to say
nothing. Masters was being very friendly. Well, | thought, | can
say anything. It doesn't matter. When we get to London, I'll
never see him again.

I'm going to be a jockey,' | told him.

'Yes,' said Masters. He smiled. 'You're the right size to be a
jockey, aren't you. It must be a very interesting job for a young
man. But it's hard work, very hard work. And you've got to be
strong.

'l am strong,' | said. 'When | was at school, | was stronger than
many of the bigger boys.'

'Yes, I'm not surprised,' replied Masters. 'You look strong to me.
Small people like you are often very strong.'

| was pleased when Masters said this. Most people looked at
me and laughed because | was so short. But Masters knew that
| was strong.

'Who are you going to ride for?' Masters asked.
| didn't understand his question.

So he explained to me. A jockey works for a man who owns
racehorses. The jockey rides his horses.
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'Well, | haven't decided yet,' | said.
‘Do you know any racehorse owners?' Masters asked.
'No,' | said, 'l don't.

'‘But there are so many young men like you, Tom,' said Masters.
'They all want to be jockeys. You won't find a job easily. You
must know a racehorse owner.

Masters was right.

'‘And you'll need money in London,' he said. 'You won't get a
job immediately. Have you got much money?'
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‘A little,' | said.

Masters was right again: | needed money. But where was |
going to get money?

'It takes a very long time to become a real jockey,' said Masters.
You'll work for a long time before you earn much money. |
know. | used to own racehorses myself. | had one or two
jockeys. But they didn't get much money?'

Now | was very interested in Masters. So he had owned
racehorses. Perhaps he'll be able to help me, | thought.

What about your weight?' Masters asked me. 'How much do
you weigh?'
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'Forty-three kilos,' | said.

'Forty-three kilos,' said Masters. 'You're a little too heavy for a
jockey. You'll have to lose some weight, you know?' It's not
going to be easy to become a jockey, | thought.

'Do you swim?' Masters asked suddenly.
'Yes, | like swimming,' | said.

'Good,' he said. 'Swimming is good for you. It's good exercise
and it makes you strong. Shirley likes swimming too.'

Shirley looked at me and smiled. | felt happy again. | liked
Shirley and | liked Masters. They were kind to me and they

were interested in me.

'Look, Tom,' Masters said, | can help you. You need money now,
don't you? And | have a job for you, if you want it. But not as a
jockey. Work for me for a fortnight and I'll give you one
thousand pounds.

"What's the job?' | asked.

'l can't explain to you now,' Masters said. It's difficult to explain.
But come home with me now, and | can show you.

You can live in my house. When you have one thousand
pounds, you can live in London and look for work as a jockey.'
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thought about it. | needed the money.
'Yes,' | said, 'T'll do the job.'
'Good,' Masters said.

'Good,' Shirley said too. She smiled at me. T'll help you with
this job. | also work for him, you know.'

"Well, Masters said, 'can you start work today?
'Yes,' | said.

'Let's go to my house now,' Masters said. 'Then we can talk
about the job?'

‘T'm glad that you're taking the job,' Shirley said, holding my
hand. 'You'll do a very good job?'

Nobody had ever spoken such kind words to me.
We left the café and went back to the car. Immediately

Masters started off for his home.
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Shirley

The car turned off the road and along a narrow path. A minute
later we stopped outside a big house. | had never seen such a
beautiful house before. Masters is a very rich man, | thought to
myself.

Shirley pointed towards some trees.

‘'There's a path there. It leads to the swimming pool, she said. |

will show you later and we'll have a swim?'

There was a small field with some horses in it near one corner
of the house. Perhaps Masters wanted me to work with the
horses. | was able to see the sea about two kilo-metres away in
the distance.

We went into the house and into a large room. The room was
full of expensive-looking furniture. There were shelves full of
books all round the walls. But where was Masters' wife? There
didn't seem to be any other people in the house.

It seemed to be empty. Perhaps Masters didn't have a wife.
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Make yourself at home, Tom,' Masters said in a friendly voice.
What do you want to drink?

'Some whisky, please,' | replied. | had never drunk whisky
before, but | wanted to try some.

'Fine,' Masters said. 'Have a drink and then Shirley will show
you your room. It's a nice room. You'll like it. We'll have a meal
later. Shirley is a very good cook?

I was surprised. What was Shirley's real job? Perhaps she was
Masters' cook. | didn't know.

We're going to work very well together,' said Masters.

'Yes,' | said. 'Tell me about the job. What do you want me to do
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‘Later, Tom, I'll tell you later,' said Masters. 'Have a rest now. I'll
tell you all about the job tomorrow. There's no hurry.'

But | wanted to find out more. And so | asked another
question.

'Is it a dangerous job?'
Why?' Masters asked me. 'Are you frightened?'

No, of course not,' | replied. 'l don't want an easy job. | want an
interesting job.'

'Good, said Masters. 'l like that. No, it's not a dangerous job, but
there are a few risks.'

I was not worried by a few risks. One thousand pounds
was a lot of money.

Masters stood up. 'Well, now you can see your room,' he said.
And at that moment Shirley came in.
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'Show Tom his room, will you, Shirley?' Masters asked.

| followed Shirley up the stairs and along a corridor. My room
had a bed and three chairs. There were also two lamps and
some shelves with books. It was much better than my room at
home.

'OK?' asked Shirley.

'Great,' | said. 'It's great.'

'That's my room,' Shirley said, and pointed to the next door.

| was pleased that her room was so near. | liked her very much.
'Do you want to go for a swim now?' she asked me.

'There's plenty of time before we eat.

'Yes,' | said.

T'll meet you at the pool in five minutes,' she said. 'Go down
the path that | showed you.’

She went out and closed the door immediately. Then
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remembered something. | didn't have any swimming trunks.

| wanted to find Shirley and ask her. | knocked on her door, but
there was no answer. So | went to the pool and looked for her
there.

25



4

The Swimming Pool

The swimming pool was very big and deep. There was a small
hut beside it. | got to the pool and the door of the hut opened.
Shirley came out. She was wearing a black swimming-costume
and looked beautiful.

She saw me looking at her.

Do you like it?' she asked.

| didn't know what to say. 'Yes, it's great,' | replied.
'Hurry up and get changed,' she said

'‘But | haven't got any trunks,' | said.

‘There are some trunks in the hut. Go and put them on.' | went
into the hut and changed. The trunks fitted me well. | dived
into the water. Shirley swam to me and touched my arm.

'‘Let's have a race,' she said.

We raced to the other end of the pool and | won. | liked
swimming and so | was enjoying myself now.

After a few minutes Shirley showed me a big ring.

'Let's have a game with this ring,' she said. | will dive under
the water with it. Then you try and swim through it. OK?

She dived into the water and | swam down to her. The
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ring was very close to the wall of the pool. There was not much
room and | wasn't able to swim through it easily. | tried, but |
was not able to get through. We both swam up to the surface.

'You'll have to do better next time,' Shirley said. Her voice was
unfriendly. | was surprised. But | really was a good swimmer. |
wanted her to see that.

We dived again. | was very careful this time. | swam through
the ring once. Then | swam through the ring again.

| was able to do it quite easily this time.

We got out of the pool.

'That was much better,' Shirley said with a big smile.

I wanted to hold her hand. But | was frightened.

Perhaps she didn't want me to touch her. So | did nothing.

Now something else,' she said after a few minutes.
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‘There's a large stone down at the bottom of the pool.
Can you get it up and put it on the path?

| didn't believe her. | hadn't seen any stone in the
pool.

'‘Bring it up. Aren't you strong enough?'

'Go on,' she ordered. Her voice was unfriendly again.

I dived into the water again.

At last | saw the stone. | picked it up and swam to the surface.
| tried to get the stone out, but it slipped and sank to the
bottom.

Do it properly!"
'That's no good,' Shirley shouted angrily. "Do it again!

I was angry. Why was she giving me orders like this? | was
working for Masters, not for Shirley.

But | was alone and | needed a friend. | didn't have any other
friends now. Shirley liked me. | was sure of that. | dived again.
This time | brought the stone up and got it onto the path.

'l didn't like that game,' | said. 'lIt wasn't easy.'
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'It was hard,' Shirley said, but Masters is paying you for hard
work.'

| was surprised. But before | said anything, she kissed me.
So she really did like me! | kissed her and | forgot my anger.
Then she suddenly drew back her head.

'Not now,' she said. 'l must go and get dinner ready.

Masters is probably waiting for us.'

Do you work for him all the time?' | asked her.

'Yes,' she replied.

'What do you do?" | asked. 'l mean, what is your real job?

° I make myself useful,' she said.

'How does Masters make all his money?' | asked.
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'You'll have to ask him yourself,' she said. He may tell you and
he may not. You'd better get changed now, Tom.

I'll see you in the house.' And she walked away.
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My Bag is searched

I went and changed my clothes and then | walked back to the
house. | was thinking all the time. Masters was paying me for
hard work. But what work? Why did he want me?

| went up to my room. | met Masters on the way.

'Hello,' he said with a smile. 'Did you have a good swim?'
'Yes, thanks,' | said

'Were you able to swim through the ring?' he asked.

So it was Masters' idea. He had arranged it all.

Yes, | swam through the ring, | said.

'Good,' said Masters. 'You did very well. | saw you from the

window.'

He had seen me in the pool. Perhaps he had seen me kiss
Shirley. | felt angry.

'Were you spying on us?" | asked.
'Of course not,' Masters replied. | saw you by chance.
You can see the pool from my window upstairs.

| still felt angry because | didn't really believe him. But | said
nothing.

Well, come and have some food,' he said. 'You must be hungry?
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We went into the dining-room and Shirley brought the food in.
Then she went out again.

'Isn't she going to eat with us?' | asked Masters.

'Oh, she's busy,' said Masters. 'You'll see her again later.
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After we finished the meal, | asked Masters again about the job.
'We can talk about that tomorrow,' he said.

I still didn't know anything about Masters.

"What do you do?" | asked. 'What business are you in?'

Masters looked at me for a moment.

'Salvage,' he said.

I didn't know what he meant. But | was to find out soon.
Masters stood up.

"I have a lot of work to do now,' he said. 'Excuse me, but |
must go. If you want, you can watch television. But go to bed
soon and get plenty of sleep. You start work tomorrow

morning?'

| watched television for a short time. But Shirley didn't appear
again and | felt tired. | decided to go to bed.

When | got to my room, | looked for my bag. | had left it on the
bed, but now it was on a chair. | looked in the bag. Everything
had been moved, but nothing was missing.

Someone had been in my room and had gone through my
things.

| sat down on the bed and thought to myself. It was Shirley, of
course. | was sure of that. She hadn't eaten with us. She had
been in my room when Masters and | were eating. She was
spying on me. And Masters was spying on me too. But why?
What did they want to find out?

I was very tired and | couldn't think clearly. | decided to speak

to Shirley in the morning. The most important
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question was What is the job that Masters wants me to d0?o

I'll know that in the morning, | thought, and then | fell asleep.

6

Something Very Valuable

'There it is,' Masters said to me. 'The ship is down there under
the water!'

We had left Masters' house about two hours ago. We had
driven down to the mouth of the river by car. Now we were
sitting in a boat about two kilometres out at sea. Masters was
pointing down at the water.

'The ship is called The Kular,' Masters was saying. 'It sank last
month. When it sank, it turned on its side.

'The Kular was carrying something for me, something very
valuable. It was a bag with diamonds in it. They're worth a lot
of money, and they're important to me, too.

| need them in my business. I've waited a long time for them.

I've been down into the ship, Tom. | know where the diamonds
are. But | couldn't get to them. It's very difficult because the
ship is lying on its side. Only a small, strong man can get to
them. I'm too big. That's why | need you, Tom. You're small
enough to reach the diamonds.'
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I didn't know what to say. | felt a bit afraid.
You're not frightened, Tom, are you?' Masters asked.

'No, of course I'm not,' | said quickly.
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'Good,' said Masters. 'There's no need to be afraid. I'll come

down there with you. You'll be safe?'

So this was the job! Salvage. Masters wanted me to get the
diamonds out of the sunken ship. | didn't know what to say.

It did not seem an easy job to me.

I've never stayed under the water for long, | said. 'How can |
dive down and get the diamonds?'

'You're a good swimmer,' Masters said. 'Come home with me
and you can practise for a few days. You must have a scuba
suit.'

'What's that?' | asked

'A scuba suit is a special rubber suit for divers. It keeps you dry
and warm under the water. You wear a mask on your face. And
you carry the air on your back in a cylinder. Then you can stay
under the water for twenty minutes.'

'‘But I'm not a diver. I've never used a scuba suit,' | said.
'That doesn't matter,' Masters said. 'l can train you.
Shirley can help you. She has used a scuba suit.'

| was pleased to hear this. So I'll see her and work with her
again, | thought.

'Let's go back now,' Masters said. 'There's nothing more to see
for the moment.

On the way back, | thought about the job. Masters had said
that it was very simple. But it seemed a bit dangerous to me.

38



Masters is going to give me one thousand pounds for the job, |
thought to myself. Why don't | ask him for more money? I'll ask
him for fifteen hundred pounds.

| decided to ask Masters for fifteen hundred pounds. | was on
my own now. | had no family with me and no friends.

I had to think of myself.
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When we reached the mouth of the river, we tied up the boat
and got out.

'Well, Tom, do you think you can do it?' Masters asked.
"Yes, I'm sure | can, Mr Masters,' | said, 'but ..?
'Yes, what is it?' Masters asked

Well, | think the job is worth more than one thousand pounds,
| said.

Masters laughed. He seemed amused.

'Good,' he said. 'You'll make a good businessman. Tell me. How
much do you think the job is worth?'

'l think fifteen hundred pounds,' | said. | was nervous. | hoped
Masters did not see this.

Masters thought for a moment.

‘'That's a lot of money,' Masters said slowly. '‘But you want to
get the best for yourself. Good. All right, | agree.
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Get the diamonds and I'll give you fifteen hundred pounds.' |
felt much better now. Fifteen hundred pounds! That was

a lot of money.
'When are we going to do the job?' | asked.

'On Sunday, | hope,' Masters said. 'It'll have to be early in the
morning. Then there won't be so many people around. There
won't be so many boats on the river.

| don't want people to see us. No one must find out about the
diamonds. That's why we came so early this morning.

Was Masters telling the truth about everything? And why did
he want everything to be secret? Perhaps it was because of the
diamonds. | didn't know.

'Let's go now,' Masters said. 'l have to see a man called
Clark. We can have a cup of coffee there?

'Who's Clark?' | asked.
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'He's going to help us on Sunday,' Masters replied. He lives near
here so he can easily come and help us?

Won't Shirley be with us on Sunday? | asked
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'Oh, yes, she'll be with us, Masters said. 'You like her, Tom, don't

you? Yes, of course you do. She likes you as well.

You can take her out tonight. I'll give you the money. You can
take her to a restaurant for a meal?

"Thanks very much,' | said. | was pleased that she liked me.

We got to Clark's house and had coffee. Clark and Masters
talked for a long time about Sunday and about the job. When
we were in the car again, Masters spoke to me.

'l want you to do one thing, Tom.'

‘What's that?' | asked.

You must make a telephone call today, Tom.’
‘Who to?' | asked.

'Oh, Shirley will explain,’ Masters said. 'But it's very important.
You must promise to make the telephone call.

‘All right,' | replied. 'But | don't understand.’

'You will understand, Tom," Masters said. 'But don't think about
it now. Shirley will explain later. You and | must do some work
first.

'We're going to look at some plans of the ship this after-noon.
You must study the plans carefully. Then you'll know where the
diamonds are hidden. This is very important.

When you're in the water, you'll have to find the diamonds
quickly. And it'll be dark down in the water.'

| heard Masters, but | wasn't listening to him. | was thinking
about the phone call. What was this phone call?

And why did | have to make it!

43



Olestida s asqauiinsday Gj’é_) oglis gl S :ogala oodog Liwgale
fala Glestiaajly g il ailwli gai 81 gjon opid S al gai .ciluoa
faiili glelaSal aceadisay ¢jay oyt LU avwypy

Gl GJaa Ja) & oglys pdd' .S Liwgele «Cbios asid JaSal (lar 0ddf
IalSen 44 @l jaa gingdd glegSihy « auilg & Cuasoa

Cuilgiiod .pod0d (liasojly (0 09004 iy ogdSdaudy gauiiaal Cuuilgiiod
1O4lgd S0 & Saqdiliiinia aliai

AlSos udl jaa 4aS gal as pggr gugala .alig "guliga 533"

oSaogle 31 Liwgele g SyAS .ogodjled (leogld g SyAS o airidiiaS
glial .ays Qliasoyls uwb ¢ aseamsa @j§y oSyad gub )
@dyS JaSal gawd Liwdele pisiijla lsasaliieg-igd

‘add Casy Cull S Gugdess (gS'
"Cmody pladdl Hddaldi Sdutiogady §edl S04 pdi (HsS
G P

. v = == ve y [ *0 . v 3 v e . o v
Clioa 4SS j9) e’ ogdilSoa ()99 1§y Gl 041" -9 Liwgale
Ldsy asadodldl aagsiogadan Gl (il

QA4SLL ()0 ,424.3 caiily' z0g<ls ,a.oﬁog
090JaSda (ol Gy Limid pdar’ @t CnaSes i gliily §4 idg Limgale

Lioyauw Ciios 45 9 )0 (95 Lmogyam .ogailSos g9y Cigy silga ol s
Ordasa Olidaly Soddan

(guaSes aSapidias gadiddi Sjsian gpaw §pedad ¢§oguiidiy
d Olsawleiad Cuiljos oLl .ogairiigdy lSaidy Gaj9 @ diwgiy
ASI)S j3) guaedd .(oglylin laigs

Hj egainjduy OlSawleidi ulpd @ Gied (Culuasegli glial Siils
sl jluasogli

44



Giiogady al ppu GySoadi ] pieS pdar ger Limgale 4l pigS

‘i oo asigdalai aasiogady add 104 0904 Sod asaigaalai

oy alaidl o as aylali 28 o9

7

Don't Tell Me What To Do

| worked with Masters all afternoon. We studied the plans of
the ship. Masters showed me where the diamonds were.

He explained how I could find them.

'Remember the plans very carefully,' he said. When you're on
the ship, you must remember. You mustn't make a mistake.'

So | worked hard and studied the plans carefully. When we had
finished, Masters spoke to me about the evening.

'You're taking Shirley out this evening, aren't you?' he said.
'You'll need some money. Here's £30. You'll need a car too. You
can take my car. Not the Jaguar. | have a second car, a Mini.
You can take that. You can drive, can't you?'

'Yes,' | said.

It was true. | could drive. But when you drive a car, you need a
driving licence. And | didn't have a driving licence.

Shirley came downstairs. She was wearing an orange-coloured
dress and she looked very beautiful. | couldn't believe | was
going out with such a beautiful girl.

Where shall we go?' | asked when we were in the car.

'Let's go to a pub and have a drink,' Shirley said.
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When we had driven along the road for about two kilo-metres,
Shirley pointed to a telephone box.

'Stop here,' she said.
‘Why?' | asked
You have to make an important telephone call,' she said.

'Remember?

7

P4SI 2 Gl pl

Gaidai §1 Qleogainingd . 4yS ayls Liwgale JaSal §jogui ol
Ol sasawlelai Lidgud asafiidi jawal Liwdels .4)S aSapibas
aies 4l @i5S iy g el

0940jgiler ailgios ()3 4S 090445 )99y (94

CiglaaSapsiiias glial SIS Gy Gypal GaSadiial Gugs 4 45) (s
LCmasy aan Gl

oganlys pasaidy gaiiddi al Gay9 w g pggs 9g-tile i) s

A3S JaSd gasogleid Gl Liwgaele «()ug9gs glogati SilsS.

¥ ayily 090j0u dinaios il aqojloii pal

Lnogyam .sdogls Y+ ogal L ".Calion ojly Sy w Guiwagia dags ‘(9
aSojloSla Cyan (o GaSalinegidl Culgios . alinedidl @ Ciuedy
Cudlgros Ll .Cudfjlsay gaf Qudlglion .(ias «dyam @e0ggd (Slitedtigi Li

L gly wigeduil
Gl :plieS
Wiggdoail  Jiwedisi SUS  edar agediill  Gilgieod gy Cuuly
9gadti adiiyibdd Gialde og .Ciiiod G bR idlde @ Cliiwagiy
46



Olga 4 9 99 lyymal lldais Sioy Sia .ogosled ailm (i
09004 aaaoa luilga Ighi Sias (JaSal aySoadi ajogly .Cigasyoa

V v, v . . v v oeev S -
© 695 & O prupy (299 lMaSaliiegigs glial as
Sogaingiy Sl g Sagailizas aiz b’ :Hg ol

@ Gojlall Gyt (Qaiiinggy laaslSijar 9o sidedlis ggu Gasay Sidls
Sadawogy o' i(HigS 4SS Hdoalai ,Sidgai

78 Py
Gl i8S ¢ Cnasy 865 Gidbdalal Sauatiogyds God
7'l Gyual
“?”What phone call
"You must phone your father,' said Shirley.
'‘But | told you, my father's dead,' | said.
‘No, Tom, that's not true. He's not dead.’
'You're mad,' | said. 'l told you he died in a car crash.

'Stop it, Tom,' Shirley said. 'Your father's called Wilfred Doggett
and he lives in Liverpool.

'How do you know?' | asked. 'Were you spying on me?'

'No, Tom,' she said. 'But last night you talked in your sleep. You
talked about your father. Masters heard you. He heard a lot of
noise, and so he listened. You were shouting about your father.
You said you hated your father. You said you didn't want to
stay at home with him.'

So Masters knew the truth about me. But | didn't mind.

| wasn't going back home. | wasn't going to see my father
again.
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'‘But why must | ring my father?' | said. 'l hate him. | don't want

to ring him.

No, Tom, you must ring him,' Shirley said. 'Your father knows
that you are missing now. Perhaps he'll call the police and the
police will search for you. So you must ring your father. Tell
him that you have a good job and you are well.

Then your father won't worry about you?
Shirley was right.

"You understand, don't you?' she said. And she gave me a kiss.

Now make the phone call, please, Tom'.'
'Oh, no, not now, Shirley,' | said.

Tom, please make the phone call now. Then we can forget all
about your father and we can enjoy the evening.

It's very easy. Just tell your father that you have a good job.
Tell him that you'll write to him soon?'

‘All right,' | said. 'Don't tell me what to do. | know what
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I'm going to say.
'Good,' she said. 'Here's some money for the phone call'
T've got money,' | said.

| left Shirley in the car and went over to the telephone. | had
enough money to speak for two minutes. | didn't want to talk
for long to my father. | telephoned.

'Mr Doggett speaking,' said my father's voice.
'This is Tom,' | said. 'Look, I've got a good job ..?

‘Tom, my boy, where are you?' my father asked. 'Your mother

and | are so worried.'
‘I'm in Manchester,' | said. This was not true, of course.

'Listen, | have a good job here. Don't worry about me. I'll write
to you next week.

'‘But what's your address? Give me your address,’ my father said.
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Look, | have to go,' | said. I'm in a phone box and | haven't got
any more money for the phone.

Wait, Tom, wait, my father said. 'Don't put the phone down.

Give me your phone number and I'll ...'
"Sory,' | said. No time. I'll write to you next week.
Goodbye?

| put the phone down and went back to Shirley. | was glad |
had finished the call.

Well done, she said. Now let's go to the pub.'
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An Argument

We drove to the next village and stopped at the pub. It was an
old building. | knew that old pubs like this one were expensive.
| parked the car in a car-park full of big, expensive cars. | didn't
like this pub much.

We went in. The pub was full and there were no seats.
"I don't mind. I'll stand up, said Shirley.
| went to the bar and ordered some drinks.

'Excuse me, sir, but are you over eighteen?' asked the man
behind the bar. 'You must be over eighteen, or | can't give you
any drinks. That's the law, you know.'

'Of course I'm over eighteen,' | shouted angrily.

Everyone looked at me. The man gave me the drinks and | took
them back to Shirley.

'You were a long time,' she said.
I didn't answer. | still felt angry with the man.
There was silence. Then Shirley spoke to me.

'What did your father say on the phone?' she asked.
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| didn't reply to her question. | didn't want to talk about my
father. | drank some beer but it didn't taste very nice.

Suddenly Shirley smiled. | looked around. A young man was
coming towards us. | felt annoyed. Who was he? Why was
Shirley smiling at him?

'Hi, Christopher,' she said.

"You're looking lovely tonight,' he said and kissed her.
Shirley turned to me.

'Christopher, this is Tom,' she said. Tom, meet

Christopher.
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'Sorry,' said Christopher, 'l didn't realize you had a friend with
you, Shirley.'! And he smiled.

I didn't like the way he said the word 'friend'. | didn't like his
smile. Now | was feeling really angry.

I Will | go and get myself a drink,' said Christopher.

He turned around. As he turned, he knocked over my glass.
Some of the beer spilt over my trousers and shoes.

Without thinking, | tried to hit Christopher. | missed, and
Christopher tried to hit me. A woman shouted.

‘Tom, stop it,' Shirley shouted.

I was still holding my glass. | wanted to push it into

Christopher's face.
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The man came from behind the bar.

'This isn't the place for a fight,' he said angrily. 'Finish your
drink quietly and get out.

I was very angry now, and my face was red. | wanted to hit the
barman, but Shirley stopped me.

'Stop it, Tom,' she said. 'That's enough. Come on, let's go.'

"Look, Shirley, it wasn't my fault,' | said. 'I'm sorry.' But she was
already walking towards the door and |

followed her.

You were stupid, stupid,' said Shirley when we were outside.
'You were like a stupid child in there.'

Shirley got into the car and closed the door. | got in too.
'‘Come on, let's go,' she said.

We drove away quickly, and started to go very fast along the
road.

Who's Christopher?' | asked.

"He's a friend - someone | know,' Shirley said. 'Why were you so
angry with him?'

Why did he kiss you?' | asked.
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'It was nothing, nothing at all, she said. 'He's just a friend.'
'Really?' | said. 'l didn't think so.'

"You don't understand,' Shirley said. 'You don't have the same
sort of friends as me.'

That was true.

We stopped talking. | was enjoying driving the car now and it
was going fast. | looked across at Shirley.

When | looked ahead again, there was a bend in the road in
front. | hadn't seen it because | was looking at Shirley. | put my
foot down hard on the brake.

The car went across to the other side of the road. For a
moment, | thought that it was going off the road. | needed all
my strength to control the car.

'Slow down, you fool! Shirley shouted.

I was trying to slow down. | managed to keep the car on the

road, and we went round the corner.
'That's better,' | said. 'We're all right now.'

But we weren't all right. | heard a noise behind us. Shirley
turned round.

'I's a police-car, Tom,' she said. 'lIt's coming up behind us. They
want us to stop?’

And | didn't have a driving-licence!
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A Lucky Escape
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There was a police-car behind us. In front of us, there was
another bend in the road.

'Quick,' said Shirley. When we get round the corner, stop
immediately. Get out of the car and run round to the other
side. We must change places. Then the police will think | was
driving. Do you understand?'

'l think so,' | replied.

We went round the corner and stopped. | got out quickly and
ran around to the other side of the car. Shirley moved into the
driver's seat and | sat in her seat. Then | closed the door.

The police-car came round the corner. It stopped in front of us.

Two policemen got out and came towards the car. One of the
policemen put his head through the window. He looked at
Shirley's legs first. Then he looked at Shirley and smiled.

'You were going fast, weren't you?' the policeman said to her.
'Was 1?' said Shirley. 'l didn't think | was.'

'Perhaps not,' he said, "but you nearly lost control on that
corner. That's why we came after you.'

'Oh,' said Shirley. She pretended to be surprised. 'I'm sorry. I'll

be more careful next time.'
'Have you got your licence?' the policeman asked.

'Oh, yes,' Shirley answered. She took it from her bag and gave it
to him.

The policeman looked at the licence.
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'Is this your address, in London?' he asked.

I was surprised. Shirley didn't live in London.

'Yes,' she said.

'What are you doing so far from London?' he asked.

'Oh, we're visiting some friends,' she said. She smiled at him

again.

'When are you going back to London?' he asked.
‘Tomorrow,' she replied. | have to go back to work then.
'Is this your car?' the policeman asked.

'Yes,' she said.

The policeman was interested in Shirley. He didn't know that |
had been the driver. Everything was all right.

Then the policeman looked at me.

'Is this your boyfriend?' he asked Shirley.

'Yes,' she said.

‘What's your name?' he asked me.

'Tom Russell.' | said. | didn't want to tell him my real
name.

'Do you drive too?' he asked me.

Shirley answered. No, he doesn't,’ she said. 'Why do you think
that I'm driving?'

'Well, drive more carefully next time,' the policeman said. 'You
don't want to have an accident, do you?'
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'No, you're right,' Shirley said. 'Thank you very much?' The two
policemen went back to their car and drove away.

Shirley and | sat and looked at each other.
that | was driving.'
'l can't believe it,' | said. 'We're all right. They didn't see

No,' said Shirley. 'We've both got the same colour hair and

we're the same height. The police were a long way
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behind us. They didn't know which was you and which was

me.
| laughed and she gave me a kiss.
'Why did you say your name was Tom Russell?' she asked.

'Well, | didn't want the policeman to tell my parents.' Shirley
shook her head.

'No, Tom,' she said. 'That's not the real reason. You were
frightened of the police. Have you been in trouble with the
police? Come on, tell me. | won't tell any-body?'
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| wanted to tell her and at the same time | didn't want to tell
her. | said nothing.

'Tom, you can trust me,' she said. 'Remember, | told the police
that you couldn't drive. | told a lie for you?'

That was true. She was a real friend and she wanted to help
me.

'l took some money from my father,' | said. He never gave me
any money. | needed money and | took it. He told the police
and | was taken to court. Now | have to go to the police once
every month. The police want to know where | am and what
I'm doing.'

'l see,' said Shirley. 'When do you have to go to the police

again?'
‘Ten days from now,' | said.

'Oh, that's all right then,' she said. 'You can do the job for
Masters first and then you can go to the police.

'Yes,' | said. | wish Masters was my father. He's much nicer than
my real father. What's your father like, Shirley?'

She didn't answer the question.

"Come on,' she said, 'let's go and eat. I'm hungry?'
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Learning to Use the Scuba Suit
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Before breakfast the next morning, | went down to the
swimming pool with Masters. He gave me the scuba suit and |
put it on. Masters fixed a cylinder of air on my back.

'That's good,' he said. 'And now, the flippers. Put them on your
feet.

Next Masters gave me a big heavy belt.

'This is a special belt,' he said. 'It's very heavy, so that you can
go down quickly in the water. When you want to come up
again, you take it off?

Then Masters picked up the face mask.

"Now put this on,' he said. 'You'll find it strange at first.' | felt a
little scared. | felt that | was going into another

world.

'You're not frightened, are you?' Masters asked. 'There's no need
to worry. You'll soon get used to the mask.'

There was a tube fixed to the air cylinder. He put the end of
the tube in my mouth.

Masters explained everything to me slowly and clearly. He
showed me how the air supply worked. | turned the air on and
off. He showed me everything that | had to do.

'It's really very simple,' he said. 'It seems difficult at first.
But it will be very easy when you get used to it.'

'What happens when there is no more air in the cylinder?'
| asked

Then you must come up quickly! said Masters. 'But you have
enough air for twenty minutes.'
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Next, | practised breathing exercises for an hour. | still hadn't
gone into the water. | had to practise everything first.
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We went and had breakfast. Shirley had breakfast with us. |
wanted to talk to her, but Masters was with us all the time.

All morning, Masters and | looked at maps. We studied plans of
The Kular. | had to know where everything was on the ship.

'It's very dark down in the water,' Masters explained.
‘You won't be able to see clearly?

In the afternoon, we went back to the swimming pool. | put on
the scuba suit again. It was easier now. Then | got into the

water. Masters came into the water with me.

Suddenly my mask filled with water. | didn't know what to do.
| tried to remember what Masters had told me. But it was no
good. | waved my arms and tried to shout. | felt very scared. |
was sure that | was going to drown. | was going down into the

water ...

Then Masters caught me. He took off my heavy belt and we
came up again to the surface. | breathed air again.

Masters looked at me angrily.

'l told you what you must do,' he said. 'Why didn't you

remember?'
'l forgot,' | said.

Well, you mustn't forget,’ Masters said. 'You mustn't forget
anything. I'm paying you money for this job. It's a lot of money.
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And it's not a difficult job. But you mustn't make mistakes.
You're not stupid. So remember what | say!" Masters had never
been so angry with me before. He was

so angry that | felt frightened.

'All right,' Masters said in a quieter voice. Now you'd better
practise again. Then you'll know what to do?' Masters explained
to me again.

When your mask is full of water, breathe out through
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your nose,' he said. That pushes all the water out of the mask.
You must hold your mask at the top. Then more water can't
get in.'

At the end of the day, | was able to use the scuba suit. But |
felt very tired. | was so tired that | went to bed immediately.

| didn't see Shirley.
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1

A Man Called Lewis

The next day we practised in the swimming pool again. | was
getting better and better. We practised all day. At the end, |
was not afraid at all. Only one thing still worried me.

'‘Are you sure I'll have enough air?' | asked.
‘There's enough air for you to stay down twenty minutes,’

Masters said. 'Twenty minutes is enough time for you to do the

job.

Then he said softly, 'l told Lewis that, too?' | had never heard of
Lewis before.

'Who's Lewis?' | asked.

Masters looked surprised. 'Oh, nobody, nobody at all. | showed
him the scuba suit once, that's all' Masters stood up and
walked away.

| understood that Lewis was important to Masters. But Masters
didn't want to tell me about Lewis. Why?

| put my clothes on and went back to the house. | felt happier.

Tomorrow evening I'll have finished the job, | thought.

And I'll have my money. I'll be free. Shirley and Masters will see
that | can do the job. I'll make a success of it ... but | won't see
Shirley again.
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Shirley was sitting watching television. | went to kiss her, but
she moved away.

What's wrong?' | asked her.

'Nothing's wrong,' she said. 'But | don't want to kiss you now. |
don't feel in the mood. People have different moods, you know.
Sometimes you're happy, sometimes you're unhappy. People
can't be the same all the time. I'm
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not angry with you. But | don't want to kiss you now.'

'‘But tonight is my last night,' | said to her. 'I'm leaving

tomorrow. | won't see you again.'

'‘Perhaps you will, Tom,' Shirley said. 'You never know.' | felt

very upset now.

'You don't like me, do you?" | shouted. 'You were nice to me
because you wanted me to work for Masters. That's it.'

‘'That's not true, Tom,' she said. 'l like you a lot. I'm sorry, but |
don't feel in the mood tonight. It's not your fault. There's
nothing wrong with you.'

| suddenly remembered the name Lewis. Did Shirley
know Lewis?
Do you like me more than Lewis?' | asked.

Shirley opened her eyes with surprise.
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"What do you know about Lewis?" she asked

'He worked here, didn't he?' | said. 'He used the scuba suit,
didn't he?' | was guessing, of course.

'But how did you know about him?' Shirley asked. 'Did
Masters talk about him?'

'Yes, he did,' | said. Is Lewis your boyfriend? Is that why you
don't want to kiss me?'

'No, he wasn't,’ she said. She was nearly crying. 'He was never
my boyfriend?

'l don't believe you,' | said. 'I'm going. | don't want to work for
Masters. | don't want you. You can find somebody else for the
job?'

No, Tom, no, Shirley said. She held me by the hand.
'No, you mustn't go. Forget about Lewis. He's dead.'

I was surprised. Was she telling the truth? | thought she was. |
remembered what Masters had said about Lewis. | remembered
that he didn't want to talk about Lewis. Lewis was dead
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'Oh, that's all right then,' | said. 'Lewis wasn't your
'Don't you care that Lewis is dead?' asked Shirley.

'No,' | said. 'l didn't know him. But | care about you.' She stood
up.

T'm glad you care about me,' she said. 'You must finish the job,
Tom. You must do it. When you finish the job, we'll both go
away. We'll have a holiday together. That's a good idea, isn't it?'

Yes,' | said. 'That's a great idea.'

'‘Just the two of us,' she said. 'l want that very much.' She
kissed me.

'Goodnight,' she said. 'Go to bed now. You'll have to get up

early tomorrow.'
| went upstairs to bed. | didn't go to sleep immediately.

I lay in bed thinking. Suddenly | remembered something. |
hadn't asked Shirley how Lewis had died.
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The Job Begins

| woke up early the next morning. | looked out of the window.
It was raining. | remembered what Shirley had said - 'When you
finish the job, we'll both go away.' It was a wonderful idea.

At breakfast, Masters and | sat quietly and drank a cup of tea.
'How do you feel?' he asked me.

'l feel great,' | replied. | smiled at him.

'Is Shirley awake?' | asked. | wanted to see her before we left.

No,' he said. 'She never wakes up early. But don't worry, Tom.
She'll come later. When we've finished the job, she'll be waiting
for us. And she'll have some hot coffee for us. She likes you,
you know.'

We got into the Jaguar and drove away. | felt happy. | was not
afraid of the job. | knew | could do it. And | was happy about
Shirley.

It was still raining. There were no other cars on the road.
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It was still very early. Masters told me again what | had to do. |

knew it already, but | listened.

'You must remember one thing, Tom,' he said. 'When you have
the diamonds, don't come up again too fast.

You must come up slowly through the water. I've told you
everything before. But | don't want you to forget. All right?'

| didn't like the way he spoke. He spoke like my father.

'OK, | said. 'You don't have to tell me again. | know what to do.
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'l hope so,' said Masters. 'You mustn't make any mis-takes. One

mistake and you may die.'
I knew that. | was going to be very careful.

We stopped at Clark's house. Clark got into the car, and we
drove to the sea.

The boat was in a boat-house. Masters, Clark and | took all the
things out of the car and put them in the boat. Then Masters
and | put on our scuba suits. | was soon ready.

We all got into the boat. Masters started the engine and we

moved out to sea.
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| looked back at the land. | could see houses, but no people.
Everyone must still be asleep, | thought. Nobody was watching
us.

Masters looked at the map.

'Here we are,' he said. 'The Kular must be below us.' He stopped
the engine. A moment later the boat stopped moving. My heart
was beating. | looked at Masters. He had a serious expression
on his face.

'‘Are you ready, Tom?' Masters said to me. Let's not waste time.
Let's go quickly. When we go down, we must stay close to each
other, remember.

| put the air tube in my mouth. Masters did the same. We got
into the water and began to go down. Clark stood up in the
boat and watched us.

I moved very slowly in the water. Masters was in front of me. It

wasn't very dark in the water. A fish swam near
to me.

Masters waved his arm. | swam towards him. A moment later |

saw the ship. Masters swam down towards a door.
| followed close behind him. We stopped at the door.

Masters held my arm with one hand. With the other hand, he
pointed through the door.
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| knew what he meant. He was going to wait for me at the

door. | was going inside by myself.

13

Inside The Kular

I went through the door. Inside it was very dark. | couldn't see
anything. | had a torch with me and | switched it on. But it
didn't give much light in the dark water.

| was frightened. | stopped and tried to make myself calm

again.

| realized that | was wasting time. How long had | been in the
water? | didn't know. Perhaps ten minutes. And | only had
enough air in the cylinder for twenty minutes.

| realized something else, too. The ship was not on its side.

Masters had said that the ship was lying on its side. He said he
had been down several times. But it wasn't on its side.

That was strange. Perhaps it had moved in the water.

| went on slowly and carefully. | swam through another door.
This door was very narrow. It was half shut and it was
impossible to open it any more. | had to be very careful. | didn't
want to catch my air tube in the door. | went through very
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carefully. | put my feet through the opening first. Then | pushed
the rest of my body through the opening.

| found myself in a small cabin. | remembered the plans of the
boat exactly. | was very close to the diamonds. | was near to
success! It was very dark and the torch did not help me much.
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There was a seat in front of me. | knew that the diamonds
were hidden in this seat. Masters had given me a knife. | took
out the knife. But then | saw something in the light of my
torch. There was a cut in the seat. Someone else had cut it
already.
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I was amazed. | didn't believe it. Masters had said that no one
else had been inside the ship. | put my hand inside the cut.
There was nothing there. The diamonds had gone.

Someone had already taken them.
| was worried.

Masters won't believe me, | thought. He'll say | looked in the
wrong place.
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I didn't know what to do. | had to go back to Masters without
the diamonds. | didn't have them and there was no more time
to search for them. How much air did | have left?

Perhaps enough for five minutes.

| went back to the narrow door. There was something floating
in the water behind the door. The light from my torch shone
on

i sgdl . aSogly aijgil gli dimd aiwod .09gidi lMdSdaysiiias

D9siladi OlSawlelai .ggidi Ly S
Oliggaay Shwas iy

o9l pga Olyasi O

09045 @t «QlSLily @jogly Limgale
ailyasS piaSiidgu al dama b asloy

Liwdole 63 34 ogasiyasSy gulelai (uas pgey Jlali pdsy 2 (iljoedi
fogule plgam sida Jaililgads GlyaS g1 Ledi ails yiud

Gple Salgd @il Gals aSioy

laasogli gli al Sl lsaslSjos Cuiny ol .aSasuuali LS jod gli 0gaegen
0g<iLiligo jios ggu Jlua pasaiyd Sliggy jasal . ogaydgion

My heart started beating hard. It was a small bag. There was a
red line on it. | recognized it. Masters had said the diamonds
were in this bag.
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| opened the bag. There were no diamonds inside. There was
only some white powder. Some of the white powder had come
out of the bag. It was floating like a cloud in the water.

But diamonds aren't white. And they don't go cloudy in
water.

| pulled the bag and some more white powder came out of it.
The bag was caught on something. | pulled hard and it came
free. | held it tightly in my hand.

Now | had to get out. | moved fast. | breathed hard and | used
a lot of air. How much air did | still have?

As | moved, | was thinking.

Who moved the bag? | asked myself. Where are the diamonds?
What happened to the man who found the bag?

| was sure that somebody had been here. Somebody had taken
the bag out of the seat. Suddenly | knew the answer.

Lewis. Masters had spoken about Lewis. Lewis had seen the
scuba suit. And Shirley had said that Lewis was dead.

I was sure of one thing. Lewis had died when he tried to get
the diamonds. Was | going to die? My mind was full of terrible
thoughts.

I moved as fast as possible. | didn't look where | was going.

I hit the door and the air tube came out of my mouth. | was
drowning. | found the air tube and put it back in my mouth.

But there was no air in it. It was full of water.

My head felt terrible. | could not control myself. My arms went
above my head, my head went back
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Then suddenly | was breathing air again. | had moved my head
back. That was the right thing to do. | had practised that with
Masters. | was alive!

Jawal Gygow GSELm  gguylis Sgen Saliila L il iggd als
OMsSaliila gliad glSawlaiai GarigS Liwgala .0gdasli .ggilpiris

IiS rw $oyada Sidiam Lmiai .ggudai guleiai Ligli al .0goayS pasliila
aday Sog . 0gojon diggrilm asaunss al ariw 0j3S gal Sidiam ged
.09<iljgauos lsasogli glial Sijgam

ogaiigili gli glial .auai G gulalad pday

al asliila 99208 ] G4 Grw G)8 Sisiam g Liisly paSdauwys
@ pipS adgd .Olm alwos gga al g Livisaly @aigh @ . gu g5 S
.09<La-l10

GAdgd < .0944399; Al HA @ . 0gog0n ey asoglial ol Liwis
glial lgam Sjsiam Lidim LiimjlsSas aj8) Saulgam g los pawliam
asojoivliw

99iLe
0904 J504 Ayl J.\.i..\JSdeg; Jasa

gai "Q.*.gs al UISd.u.lLaj‘lj W aega al ¢ Caaidea gasliila D lod
Oln jawar o3 094ujds Gaskiila Gogliy

asaijgls al Gasliila Siwas 0991 o3 Jeal jau Siwas as ages Luils
Al) pasasdog glslial « ogliim jos

. 0guiidy GashgsSw gjac Quygl 994355 Quugl Gl Liwgale .gungl
099430 Quigl (IS (s
OlSawledai  ggalarlgam gails gal guigl pger Liils Gulh Say a
# psiiie fajer gitio 9oy oMo Ll . ogliiwosal LS Giiiimiiwosdy
Sliw i Gogaia Sy al go2

87



2803 (565 &1 AySdi apdw ogaedggr GulHE w

GJ§ @AiSid aggl Sajdad 0gojoadilm peoad al lgam 534 g laaslSoa
@04 gli ogaii pasailgam

8l G 9gadi laii glgam aday
ESiiLia ¢ 9o

|j4S jog 0glges G331 g « 0941 Jyu @y G0y

41 aidgga ayaw . I3 pawliam g Gijelam algam yi Sijla glsbial GLiily
0jrisSlyy Liwgole JaSal pogad (o .94 Cuugya Sigls liogad .oglga
log<aggs ;szil% 9944 S

Now | had to get out of the ship. | went through the door and
started to swim up.

| saw bubbles. | didn't know where they were coming from.
Then | remembered Masters. He was waiting for me. | looked in
my hands. | didn't have the bag. | had lost it when | was
fighting for air. But | didn't care. There weren't any diamonds
for Masters.

Masters was holding onto a piece of metal on the side of the
ship. When he saw me, he began waving. | swam close to him.
He pointed to his air tube with both hands. Then | realized that
he wasn't moving in the water. He was caught

9 0gojdu g9 09asiSjos al .ol ASdariimas ol ggios Liwid
090 duu goyt (I ySaldaqs w1 3yS aiwod

ogaligas y aliwgale OLiily .Odu 089S al iljosadi .iwiod pilSadl
9gilediiy pasliila 4)S @pd3 ilSdiwon Grdaw 951 (0 ool

88



Jadi o @SS O pdar aySos lgam §u ajaill SIS ySig pasliila

994 lali liuugala

oo 45 aSaiiias ¢ al gguipS ogasailiils aajly @ ilwod Liwgele
4 3yS pdlas gdi Sai goyar . Ouililiogly Cuwodds WS Hwod iud
as plunaSi olil 4y 683 ¢lgam Gy8 w Gojlll lwos ggdjam

9934lgd S .Cuidgali luasogli glial gad

| went very close to Masters. He tried to take my air tube out of
my mouth. | moved away quickly. | could see his eyes.

He looked very frightened. He was trying to kill me.

I moved around Masters carefully. He was still waving at me. He
was angry because | didn't have the diamonds. But that was
stupid. He didn't know that the diamonds were missing.

| moved behind him. Now | could see better. Masters' air tube
was caught round the metal. | tried to free it.

Then Masters stopped moving. The air tube came out of his
mouth. A lot of bubbles came out of his mouth. He was

drowning.

| pulled hard, and managed to free his air tube. | took off his
belt, and then mine. | pulled Masters by the arm and we
started to go up to the surface. Now | had to be very careful.

I must not go too slowly, or Masters was going to die. But |
must not go too fast.
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| remembered Masters' words earlier that morning.

When you have the diamonds, Tom, you must come up slowly
through the water.'! But now | didn't have any diamonds and
Masters was in real trouble.
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14

Questions Are Answered

We came up slowly towards the surface. | hoped that Masters
was still alive. But | didn't know.

I did know one thing: | had done a good job. | had found the
bag. | had saved Masters. | had done these things by myself.
Nobody had told me what to do. | was bringing Masters to the
surface now. And | was doing this by myself.

Now | knew that | could do things by myself.

We got to the surface. We were close to the boat. | took my air
tube out of my mouth and shouted to Clark. Now Masters
seemed very heavy. | couldn't hold him much longer.

Clark leant over. He put his hands down into the water and
took hold of Masters. Clark was very strong. He pulled and
Masters came out of the water.

Now | felt very weak and cold. Clark didn't help me, because he
was busy with Masters. At last | managed to get into the boat.

Clark was breathing into Masters' mouth. | couldn't help him. |
sat in the bottom of the boat and began to shake. | was cold
and tired, and also frightened.

Clark took a bottle out of his pocket and gave it to me.
'Here, drink this,' he said. 'It'll do you good.'

| drank some. It made me cough. But then | felt much better.
'How is Masters?' | asked Clark.

'He's dead," Clark said simply.
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| had never seen a dead man before. Masters didn't look dead;

he looked tired and asleep. His skin was a little blue
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and there were dark spots on his hands.

| looked at my hands. There was a cut on the back of one of
them. | didn't remember when | had cut myself. My hand was
beginning to hurt.

Clark started the engine and the boat began to move.
'Did you find the bag?' Clark asked me.

'Yes,' | said. 'But there were no diamonds in it - only some
white powder.'

Clark didn't say anything.

After a moment, | asked, What was in the bag, Mr Clark?
'Drugs, of course,' he replied. 'It was heroin in the bag.
'‘But Masters said it was diamonds,' | said.

'I'm not surprised,' said Clark. 'He said diamonds because
diamonds are more exciting. And he didn't want you to know,
you see.'

| understood what Clark meant.
'Did the heroin belong to Masters?' | asked.

'Yes,' Clark said. 'He didn't want to lose it. But | knew that the
search was dangerous. After Lewis died, | told Masters not to
try again.'
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We'll have to tell the police, won't we?' | said. 'Will there be
trouble?

No,' Clark said. 'Masters drowned. Only you and | and Shirley
know about the drugs. He didn't tell anyone else.

We'll say that it was an accident. You can say he was looking at
the wreck. Lots of people go down and look at wrecks?' We
were close to the land now. | looked and | saw the Mini at the
edge of the water. Shirley was waiting for us.

'It'll be a terrible shock for Shirley,' | said. 'She'll have to find a
new job now.'

994d LilSaiwos yawal Glioy Gl og

Ay godad Siinp OLSiSay Gl @ a5 pdd GilSaiwos Gpaw
OS] @ aysS Gilwod .ggaapn eeA wod G4S Glmosdi

S dgga w iwod g Al uSly gasasalar Gydaidgp Syds
Yoganjga Ciasliila : uyS Gylawpy SjAs’

o §0J5y Sidiam Lmiak - ggadi Il ulelal gum adar’ ia rateS
9ol

Qgdi aum Syds
Y994 laasliila glial 3 SAS jaime tapmyy Siilu glga
088 13aSLiily glial Gugsim OlSosariiam osle GlagSiy' sogauls adog

laalet Gulelal G§Saea Cuwgele pdas 1aigS

94



gy Liwgala aS apd jpaw ply’ aug) Gileod ogasapal g Syds
aSaih Gl §5 Cuwygoayai goyaiijegss sk guleldl asigy gulelds
QI EIECN

A SyAS Glwaiay adduasiy

“oggs Limgale A asaizgyim Ll ppwyy’

OlyaS Giljeoas pdar Gl Giwoeadl Cuwggosadi gdi Lia' ol SyAS
Cuir jlg Qg pliwgele @ uagl 3 Glod oglapuyide laqlggaw
Qlsdd Joan 4 Sagla

‘iiion Cuugys Sazaiiis LU 'Y auily Guasy gualda GyaISL Giea g
L ol

odula sojlal lpuili g &4 9 (0 Lmiad ISis Liwgele pidai tg Syds
1ol Gy Gwas @i Ouiljos ogailSoyaviigm

Aol ailiasS Gpyaw geriinng)y Oaily (uilgdos .0ggs Siigliggy (aidos
GiipSpmamds gl 4j ainen ji) oSislad . alsy (lSeglsinsii oged
Q . . v o &
© OlSosd Olyig axpriwas

ad alHie) asasgers alioegigd . ogdinggs S ulsiig @l Liwgd
. 994 Liwog laasogli Aljad

994 aaid rigogla (s

&1 69 SIS Gpon Liwid Gl g1 asliwyi Sitwds ogad' :aligS
‘ogdiljgal 58

'Yes, said Clark, 'but she won't find a new father, will she?
'A father?' | asked. | didn't understand.

'Didn't you know?' said Clark. 'Masters was her father.
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Didn't they tell you?'

I had never thought that Masters was Shirley's father. She had
always called him Masters.

Now | realized how Masters had known so much about me.
Shirley had told him everything. Masters had told her to be
friendly to me. They had wanted me to do the job.

| felt upset. Shirley was my only friend. But was she a real
friend?

'Was Shirley friendly with Lewis?' | asked Clark.
No, not really,’ Clark said.

What happened when Lewis died?' | asked. 'What did the police
do?"

No one ever found him. The police don't know that he died,
Clark said. 'We took him out to sea. We put a heavy belt
around him and threw his body in the water.'

Now | could see Shirley very clearly. She was standing at the
edge of the water. She seemed quiet and calm. | didn't wave to
her.

She knows that something is wrong because she can't see her
father, | thought.

The boat reached land. Shirley stood for a long time and looked
down at her father. She didn't say anything.

| am sorry, very sorry,' Clark said to her.
| saw the tears in Shirley's eyes.
She turned to me.

How did it happen?' she asked after some time.
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I told her the whole story. She listened and didn't ask any
questions.
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"But | couldn't help him,' | said. 'l couldn't do anything?
She tried to smile.

'l know, Tom,' she said. T'm sure you did your best. But you
don't have much experience. He didn't have much, either. He
was a brave man. He went down with you, but he didn't like

swimming.'
‘You're right,' | said. 'Your father was a brave man.

'So you know about us,' said Shirley. 'Masters was my father. |
didn't like telling you lies about him. But he said that you
mustn't know. But Tom, | do like you. I like you a lot.

| knew that she meant it.

'Shirley,' | said. 'Can we still go away together?”'

'Oh, yes,' she replied. 'l need to be with you now, Tom.
I haven't a mother or a father now. | only have you.'
'Haven't you got any other friends or relatives?' | asked.

The tears began to run down her face. | wanted to look after
her.

98



'No,' she said. 'l have no one, no one except you, Tom.

| need somebody brave. You were brave today. | don't want to
be alone. And you don't want to be alone, do you?

'No,' | said. | had been alone too long. | put my arms around
her.

'But we must go to the police first,' she said. 'We must tell
them that there has been an accident. We won't tell them
about the drugs. | want to forget about the drugs, don't you?

I want us to have a new start. Is that how you feel, Tom?”'

'Yes, yes it is,' | said. And | meant it.
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Points for Understanding

1 Who were the two people in the car’?:rs_EFWhy didn't Tom want

(LA LN

to work in an office?
3 Were Tom's parents alive?
2

1. What do we know about Tom's size and strength?
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2. What did Masters offer Tom?
3
1. What did Masters tell Tom about the job?

2. Why was Tom pleased that Shirley's room was so near?

4

1 Shirley asked Tom to do two things in the pool. What

[LA LN}

1. Did Tom know Shirley's real job?

2. Did Tom know how Masters had become rich?

5

1. What was Masters doing while Tom was in the pool?

2. What business did Masters say he was in? When will we
learn what this means!

3. What happened to Tom's bag of clothes?

_____

Tom's job?

4
Why did Tom ask for more money?
Why did Masters visit Mr Clark?
5 What did Tom promise to do?

1. Why was it wrong for Tom to drive a car?
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2.

1

1.

2.

12

Why did Masters want Tom to phone his father?

What was following the Mini?

Why was Tom worried?

Who was more frightened of the police: Tom or Shirley?
What did Tom have to do in ten days' time?

Did Shirley ever talk about her father?

How long did the air in the cylinder last?

Why did Tom have to study plans of the sunken ship?

Why did Shirley tell Tom to forget about Lewis?

What were Shirley and Tom going to do after the job?

1 What did Masters want Tom to do when he got the

[ LN

(LA LN

door?

13

1.

2.

3.

4.

When Tom saw the cut in the seat, he was surprised. Why?
What was inside the small bag?
How did Tom think that Lewis had died?

What had happened to Masters?
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